
WESTERN INOlA COMMERCIAL OOMPAN't UMltED

NOTES TOTH£ fINAN<:IAL STATEMENTS fOR THE YEAR ENDEO 31ff MARCH,2022

1.10 5eament reportins

The Companv Is priMarily tnealed in the busineH of lnves.tment In Companies As such the
Company's finandal statements are "!".elv ,.efTec:tiyeof the Investment business and tbere Is no
~te reporblble s.esment.

Pursuant to tnd AS 108 - OperatJ"I Seamen.ts~no $esment dlKiosure has been made In lhesa
fjnanel.1 statements, as the company hits onlv one 8eovaphlcJl 5es;nent and no other ,ePlra~
N!!portable business segnent.

i.ll. (.mi., per Share

IIsIc EPS Is. calculated by dlvidl'_" the profit or 1055attrfbutable to equity s~reholders of the
Company bY'ttle we1ahted _virile numb@ror equlty shares outstanding duo", the year.

01luted EPS &s determined by adjustfnl ~e profit or loss attributable to equity shillreholders of the
Company by the weflhted awenae numbe r of equ1cy snares outstandi"l for the effects of al. dilutive
potential equlty shares.

1.U. CaIh-fIow statement

Cash flows are reported usi"l the IndltKt methodl whe.-eby ptofit before t41xII adjusted for the
effects of tflPSidrons of I non-cash nature and any dl!"fettals or accruals of Pi5t: Of future ash
recelpts or payments. The cash Bows from resufilr revenue 8ener~t)n& Investlnl and flnaftdng
activItIes of the Companv at. ~8repled,

1.13 USE Of ESTIMATES .. JUDGEMENTS AND ADJUSTMENT

1M preparation of the finandal statements in conf'onnitywlth IndAS requires manl~menl to mak&
judgement$, e"5tim.te5 "ncI 4»sumptlons that affKt ~e appClcatf.on of accountina poliCieS .. nd the
repotted amounts of auats, Uabllltiesl Income,. expen$e~. and dlsd05uru of tontll1pnt assets and
liabIlities at !:he data of the linandilil st4ltement5 and the if'e5ulu of opentJons durl"l the mpottiOi
period end. Although tIlese est1mltes are based upon manaprnent's best knowledge of current
events and lettons, actual t8l.1lts could differ (tDm these esti~te5.

EstJmates and underlying a$~mptlons are revlewed on In onso1", basis" RI.'IrIsioM to accounting
estimates ire feCOInh:ed rn the perIod In whtch ih~es.timates are revised and in i!ny future periods
affected.

The estlmate5 and a5sumptions. that hive a s4Bnificant risk of causll'l8 a mate-rial adju~uner\t to ~he
Cinyfnl amounts of l5Sets and 1I• .b(IItIH within th~ n~JCt.financial year ate disc~sed in the
paraaraphs that follow.



WESTERN INOlA COMMERCIAL COMPANY UMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALSTAT£MENTS FOATH!: YEAR ENDED nilMARCH.1022

(lJ FlJlt VQtUi!' Measwements CIIIdVDIUGtIonp~
Some of the Complny"s aHeU and liabilities are meawred it fill,..ViI'LIe for f1naneia' reporting
purposes. tn estimating the fair vatue of In .SRI or I liability. (he Company uses market-ob$ervilble
dltl to tbe meht It is aV'alfable. wtIere L,.evellinputs are not available, the Company enpses third
party value-ft, where requlred, to perlonn the valuation. Information about tne valuation techniques
and Inpm used In detflnnlntng the fait value of various aIHts Ind nlbm~"ate diSC;I05edIn the
noles to the finandal statements.

(il)' ~cogtftt1ott o/OeJernd TOJtAueu FOI OIrricfd FOtWOtd Tax iossefcnd Unused fa...Cr«Jit
The extent to which deferred ta:x.assets tan be e:ecolnlsed Is based on an a5H$smenl: of lht'
probli~Uty of the Gompany'$ future tulble IncoMe apinst which the deferred tax as~u can be
utliised. In addition, sl8nlficanl Judgement Is reqUited III a5se~nl the impact af any tepa or
~m'c tlmru.
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DIRECTORS'REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 87'" Annual Report of your Company
along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31"' March,
2022. This report read with the Management Discussion and Analysis include details of the
macro-economic scenario, Company's performance and it's approach to risk management.

The Annual Report for FY 2021-22 is also available on the website of the Company.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summarised results of your Company are given in the table below:-

(Rs. in lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Profit before Depreciation & Provisions 1089.25 98.45

Less : Depreciation 0.44 0.46

Profit before Taxation 1088.81 97.99

Less: Provision for Current Tax 265.24

Provision for Deferred Tax 29.09 (63.36)

Profit after Tax 794.48 161.35

Add: Transfer from OCI: sale of shares 156.80

Add: Balance of Profit from Previous year 10,398.25 10,269.17

11,349.53 10,430.52

APPROPRIATIONS

Transfer to Reserve Fund (as per RBI Guidelines)

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet

158.90

11,190.63

11,349.53

WORKING RESULTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

32.27

10,398.25

10,430.52

Total income during the year under review amounted to ~1,228.24 Lac as against ~216.00 Lac
in the preceding year. Profit before tax amounted to ~1,088.81 Lac as against ~97.99 Lac in the
preceding year. Profit after tax stood at ~794.48 Lac as against ~161.35 Lac in the previous
year.

The Company continues to remain registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the
Reserve Bank of India.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of
this report, which affect the financial position of the Company.

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic, continued to be a global challenge, creating disruption across the
world. In the first three months of FY 2022, the second wave of the pandemic overwhelmed
India's medical infrastructure.
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DIVIDEND
In view of the current uncertainty and threat of pandemic looming large, the Board has decided
to retain the earnings and does not propose any dividend.

In terms of Regulation 43A of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has adopted Dividend
Distribution Policy as approved by the Company's Board. The Policy is hosted on the
Company's website and can be accessed at http://www.nbi-
india.co.in/policies/20211227 _NBI_Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company stands at ~10 crore divided into 2 crore equity
shares of '(51- each. The paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at ~122.84 Lac as
at 31st March, 2022. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any new
shares.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND
Pursuant to section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, non-banking financial
companies (NBFCs) are required to transfer a sum not less than 20% of their net profit every
year to reserve fund before declaration of any dividend. Accordingly, the Board proposes to
transfer ~ 158.90 Lac to Reserve Fund and the balance profit is retained in the Profit and Loss
Account.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year, nor does it hold
any such deposits as at the end of the year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES
The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered under Chapter
IIIB of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934), is exempt from complying with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to loans.

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any associate.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Members are advised to note that, dividends if not en cashed for a period of 7 years from the
date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund ("IEPP). Further, all the shares in respect of which
dividend has remained unclaimed for 7 consecutive years or more from the date of transfer to
unpaid dividend account shall also be transferred to IEPF Authority. In view of this, Members
are requested to claim their unpaid dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline.
However, no such amount of unpaid I unclaimed dividend and shares were transferable by the
Company to "IEPF" during the year, being not applicable to it presently.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any significantly material contract I
arrangement I transactions with related parties, attracting the requirement of disclosure in this
report as per provisions of Section 188 of the Act except for remuneration to the key managerial
personnel and sitting fees paid to directors in the ordinary course of business pursuant to Ind
AS 24 which is suitably disclosed in Note No.29 of the Financial Statements forming part of this
Annual Report. There were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of the
Act except as aforesaid.

All related party transactions entered during FY2022 were on arm's length basis and in the
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ordinary course of business of the Company under the Act as aforesaid and not material within
the meaning of the SEBI Listing Regulations or extant RBI guidelines. None of the transactions
required members' prior approval under the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and on
dealing with related party transactions. The policy is available on the website of the Company
and also forms a part of the Corporate Governance Report. Related Party Disclosures as
required under the Listing Regulations is annexed to this report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has in place adequate financial controls commensurate with its size, scale,
nature of business and operations with reference to its financial statements. The Company has
appointed internal auditors who review the internal financial control system. These have been
designed to provide reasonable assurance about recording and providing reliable financial
information, ensuring integrity in conducting business, accuracy and completeness in
maintaining accounting records and prevention and detection of frauds and errors.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors have adopted a risk management policy for the Company which
provides for identification, assessment, control and governance of risks which, in the opinion of
the Board, may pose significant loss or threat to the Company. The Policy is formulated in
compliance with Regulation 21 and Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. The policy is available on the website of the Company and also forms a part of the
Corporate Governance Report.

The main identified risks at the Company are Commercial Risks, Financial Risks, Operational
Risks and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The constitution of Risk Management Committee has
become mandatory for the Company as per Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations as the
company has come within the top 1000 listed entities based on market capitalization.
Accordingly, the Risk Management Committee has been constituted and the details of the
Committee are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Directors
The Company has seven directors on its Board. Detailed composition about the Board is
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report. All Directors have submitted relevant
declarations {disclosures as required under the Act and the Listing Regulations.

Re-appointment of Director
Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar (DIN: 00404123) and Smt. Riya Puja Jain (DIN: 01559454), Directors
of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to the
provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with the Companies (Appclntment and Qualification of
Directors), Rules 2014 and the Articles of Association of your Company and being eligible,
have offered themselves for re- appointment as Directors.

As required by Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and provisions of the Secretarial
Standards, brief resume and other details of the above-mentioned Director(s) seeking
appointmenVre-appointment, is attached to the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
None of the Directors proposed for appointment { reappointment at the ensuing Annual
General meeting are disqualified from being appointed {reappointed as Directors under the
provisions of the Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other order, directions of MCA, SEBI
or any other statutory authorities.
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Shri Ashok Bhandari, Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya, Shri Debashis Ray and Smt. Priyanka
Mohta continue to be Independent Directors of the Company appointed for a period of five
years from thei r respective dates of appointment.

The Independent Directors have appropriate skill, knowledge and experience in their
respective fields. The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors
confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that
they have complied with Schedule IV of the Act and the Company's Code of Conduct.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified under the
Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations and are
independent of the management, and are persons of high integrity, expertise and experience.
Further, in terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Board is also of the opinion that
the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and
expertise in the fields of strategy, business management, accounts & finance, auditing and
taxation and they hold highest standards of integrity.

Regarding proficiency, the Company has adopted requisite steps towards the inclusion of the
names of all Independent Directors in the data bank maintained with the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs ('IICA'). Accordingly, all the Independent Directors of the Company have
registered themselves with IICA for the said purpose. In terms of Section 150 of the Act read
with the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended vide
Notification No. GSR.774(E), dated 18.12.2020, wherever required, Independent Directors of
the Company have undertaken to complete online proficiency self-assessment test conducted
by the said Institute.

Shri S.P. Kumar is the Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Sudha Jain the Company Secretary resigned from the services of the Company from 31" May
2022. The Board has appointed Mr. Ashish Kedia, an Associate Member of the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India as the Company Secretary of your Company.

The Independent Directors, Directors and Senior Management including the employees have
complied with their obligations as mentioned under Regulations 25 and 26 of the Listing
Regulations.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS
COMMITTEESAND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the
directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of
board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors,
the Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the
views of non-executive directors. The Independent Directors reviewed the performance of
non-independent directors and the Board as a whole, took into account the views of non-
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executive directors and to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the management and the Board. The Independent Directors were satisfied with the
performance of the Board as a whole and timeliness offlow of information.

Some ofthe key criteria for performance evaluation are as follows:-

Performance evaluation of Directors:

Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.
Guidance I support to the management outside the Board I Committee meetings.

Performance evaluation of Board and Committees:

Board structure and composition
Degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities
Establishment and delineation of responsibilities to Committees
Effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning
Board culture and dynamics
Quality of relationship between Board and Management
Efficacy of communication with external shareholders.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors have submitted declaration of independence, stating that they meet
the criteria of independence provided under section 149(6) of the Act, as amended, and
regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The independent directors have also confirmed
compliance with the provisions of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of their name in the databank of
independent directors.

The Board took on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the independent
directors regarding them meeting the prescribed criteria of independence, after undertaking
due assessment of the veracity of the same in terms of the requirements of regulation 25 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended upto date, the extract of
annual return is no longer required to be part of the Board Report. However, in Compliance to
the provisions of Section 92 and Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2022 and other policies of the Company is
placed on the Company's website at www.nbi-india.co.in

AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditors
MIs Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 302137E, who are
Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed by the Company at the Extraordinary
General Meeting ("EGM") held on 27"' January, 2022, to hold office from the date of passing of
resolution until the conclusion of the 89'h Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024. In
accordance with the RBI directives, the Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the
performance of the statutory auditors and recommended their continuation as statutory
auditors for the year 2022-23. The Members are required to fix remuneration of the Statutory
Auditors forthe financial year ending 31" March, 2023.

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the eligibility I independence criteria
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required under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

The audit report by M/s Chaturvedi & Co., for the FY2022 is unmodified, Le., it does not contain
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report

Section 204 of the Act, inter-alia requires every listed company to undertake Secretarial Audit
and annex with its Board's Report a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in
practice in the prescribed form.

In line with the requirement of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 24A of the Listing
Regulations and other applicable provisions, if any, the Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2021-22 has been conducted by Shri Mukesh Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary
(PCS).

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 is annexed to this
Report. The report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark requiring
explanation or clarification from the Board.

Cost Audit

Pursuantto provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 cost audit as specified by the
Central Govemment is not applicable to the Company.

Tax Auditor

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered Accountants, to carry
outthe Tax Audit forthe Assessment Year 2022-23.

Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee had appointed M/s D.
K. Parmanandka & Co., Chartered Accountants, to carry out the Internal Audit of the Company
forthe Financial Year 2021-22.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the reporting period, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has
reported to the audit committee/Board, under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any
instance of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, and hence the
requirement to mention the same in this report is not applicable.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS:

Meetings of Board and its Committees are held as per statutory requirements and as per
business needs. Due to business exigencies, the Board and Committees have also been
approving several proposals by circulation from time to time.

Board Meeting

During the year, five Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are given in
the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the
period prescribed under the Act, Secretarial Standards-1 (SS-1) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and Listing Regulations.
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The Company has the following five (5) Committees, which have been established in
compliance with the relevant provisions of applicable laws and as per business requirements:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Risk Management Committee

4. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of three Independent Directors namely, Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya (Chairman), Shri Ashok Bhandari and Shri Debasish Ray and a Non
Independent Director Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra. The Committee met five times during the
year.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprising of three independent
directors and one non- independent director namely, Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
(Chairman), Shri Ashok Bhandari, Shri Debasish Ray and Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar. The
Committee met thrice during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing Regulations your Company was required to
constitute Risk Management Committee. Accordingly, the Risk Management Committee was
formed comprising of three members, namely Shri Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Shri Bankat
Lal Gaggar (Director) and Shri S P Kumar. The Committee met twice during the year.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Directors comprises of three members, namely Shri
Bankat Lal Gaggar (Chairman), Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra and Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya. The Committee held four meetings during the year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The CSR Committee comprises of four members, of which two are independent directors and
two non-executive directors namely Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya (Chairman), Shri
Debasish Ray, Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar and Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra respectively. The
Committee met once during the reporting period.

This year the Company was not required to spend any amount as the average net profits before
tax of the previous three financial years calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act,
2013 was negative.

The Annual Report on CSR activities of FY 2021·22 with requisite details in the specified
format as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is
annexed hereto and forms part ofthis report.

The CSR Policy of the Company is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Report. The
same is also available on the website of the Company viz. hUp:/Iwww.nbi-
india.co.in/policies/20211109_NBI_ CSR_Policy _2021 .pdf

More details about all the Committees of the Board, including details of the role and
responsibilities of Committees, the particulars of meetings held and attendance of the
Members at such meetings are stated in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part
of the Annual Report.
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POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed
a policy. inter alia, for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors which
is annexed hereto and forms part of this Report. Further, Policy relating to remuneration for the
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is also annexed hereto and forms
part of this Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company follows the criteria for determining qualification.
positive attributes, independence of Directors as per applicable policies of the Company.

Directors are appointed Ire-appointed with the approval of the Members for a term in
accordance with the provisions of the law and the Articles of Association of the Company. All
Directors, other than Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, unless otherwise
specifically provided under the Articles of Association or under any statute or terms of
appointment.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have not been any material changes and commitments in terms of Section 134(3)(1) of
the Act. affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year of
the Company as on 31'1March, 2022 and the date ofthis report Le. 31 at May, 2022.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work that is free from
discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment. Keeping in view the problem of
sexual harassment the company has framed a policy to prevent incidents of sexual
harassment as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. However, constitution of
Internal Committee as required under the Act is not applicable to the Company since the
company has less than 10 employees. All employees are covered under this Policy. During the
year under review, the Company has not received any complaints of sexual harassment.
hence no disclosures are applicable. This Policy is available on our website.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

There are no significant & material orders passed by the Regulators ICourts I Tribunals which
would impactthe going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values pursuant to the provisions of the Act and
guidelines issued by SEBI. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy. These form part of the Notes to the
financial statements.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act. 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company hereby states and confirms that:

i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year 2021-22, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
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material departures, if any

ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for FY 21-22;

iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concem basis;

v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and are operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

None of the employees is drawing remuneration in excess ofthe limits set out in Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 appended
to the Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosure pertaining to the remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12)
of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed hereto forming part of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Since the Company has no manufacturing activity, disclosures relating to Conservation of
Energy and Technology Absorption stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable.

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

The Company's equity shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE). The Company has paid the annual listing fee to the stock exchange upto the financial
year 2022-23.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporate Governance Report forms an integral part of this Report, as annexed hereto,
together with the Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Part E of Schedule V to the Listing
Regulations. There are no demat suspense account! unclaimed suspense account as on the
date of this Report as required in Part F of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As per Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report is set out hereunder and forms part of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Business Responsibility Report as required under National Guidelines on Responsible
Business Conduct formulated by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, and under
Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, describing the initiatives taken by the
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Company from an environmental, social and governance perspective, is annexed hereto and
forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

MANAGING THE RISKS OF FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND UNETHICAL BUSINESS
PRACTICES:

Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Polley) and Code of Conduct
Creating a fraud and corruption free culture has always been the core factor of your Company.
In view of the potential risk of fraud, corruption and unethical behavior that could adversely
impact the Company's business operations, performance and reputation, NBI has
emphasized even more on addressing these risks. To meet this objective, a comprehensive
"Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy", in compliance with the provisions of Section
177(10) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations, is in place. The details of the
Whistle Blower Policy is explained in the Corporate Governance Report and posted on the
website of the Company.

The Company's "Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (Code of Conduct)" is applicable to the
employees including directors of the Company and is available on the Company's website. All
employees including directors of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code of
Conduct as on March 31,2022.

Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and report trading by Insiders

In terms of SEBI (Prohibitions of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (Insider
Code) as approved by the Company's Board. Insiders (as defined in Insider Code) including
designated employees & persons and their relatives are, inter-alia, prohibited from trading in
the shares and securities of the Company or counsel any person during any period when the
"unpublished price sensitive information" are available with them.

The Insider Code also requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company's shares and
prohibits dealing in Company's shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during
the period when the Trading Window is closed.

TRANSFER OF SHARES ONLY IN DEMAT MODE

As per SEBI norms, all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and
transposition shall be processed only in de materialised form. Further vide Notification no.
SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2022/66 dated 24thJanuary, 2022, SEBI has notified that all requests for
duplicate issuance, splitting and consolidation requests too will be processed in demat mode
only.

UPDATING KYC DETAILS

Efforts are underway to update Permanent Account Number (PAN) and bank account details of
shareholder(s) as required by SEBI. The regulator, vide circular dated 3rd November, 2021
and 15th December, 2021, has mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details and nomination by
holders of physical securities by 31st March, 2023. Members are requested to submit their
PAN, KYC and nomination details to the Company's registrars.

Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circular, in case a holder of physical securities fails to furnish these
details or link their PAN with Aadhar before the due date, our registrars are obligated to freeze
such folios. The holders of securities in the frozen folios shall be eligible to receive payments
(including dividend) and lodge grievances only after furnishing the complete documents. In
case the securities continue to remain frozen as on 31st December, 2025, the registrar/ the
Company shall refer such securities to the administering authority under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, and/or Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.
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POLICIES

In addition to its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, key policies that have been adopted by
the Company and uploaded on its website are as under:

Name of the Policy Web link

Policy for selection and appointment http://www.nbi-
of Directors, Senior Management india.co.in/policies/NBIAppointment_Policy.pdf
including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of the directors

Archival Policy for Website content http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Archival Policy. pdf

Policy on Determination of Materiality http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Determination of Materiality.pdf

Familiarisation Program for http://www.nbi-india.co.inlpolicies/
Independent Directors NBI Familiarisation_Program.pdf

Insider Trading Code http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Insider Tradlnq Code.pdf

Policy for Determining Material http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
Subsidiary NBI Material_Subsidiary.pdf

Policy on Materiality of Related Party http://www.nbi-
india.co.in/policies/20220518_NBI_Policy _

Transactions on Materiality of RPT.pdf

Policy relating to remuneration for the http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
directors, key managerial personnel NBI Remuneration_Policy.pdf
and other employees

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower http://www.nbi-india.co.inlpolicies/
Policy NBI Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf

Prohibition of Insider Trading http://www.nbi-india.co.in/~olicies/
NBI Prohibition of Insider rading Policy. pdf

Corporate Social Responsibility http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/

Policy NBI CSR Policy. pdf

Prohibition of Sexual Harassment http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/

Policy NBI Prohibition of Sexual Harassment Policy. pdf

Dividend Distribution Policy http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/20211227_NBI_
Dividend Distribution Policy. pdf

Risk Management Policy
http://www.nbi-india.co.inlpolicies/20220518_NBI_
Risk_Management_Policy.pdf
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Annexure to the Director's Report

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Format for disclosure of transactions with related parties as referred to In Schedule V of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Details of transactions with related parties:

Nature of Name of related party Description of Amount
Transactions Relationship (Rs. in Lacs)

Remuneration Mr. S.P. Kumar Key Management 22.60
Personnel

Remuneration Sudha Jain Key Management 0.70
(from 16th December, 2021) Personnel

Remuneration Nisha Laddha Key Management 0.36
(upto 18th June, 2021) Personnel

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 31st May, 2022

(Ash ok Bhandari)
Chairman

DIN: 00012210

(13)
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(Form MR -3)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule NO.9 of Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
N.B.1. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED,
(CIN: L65923WB 1936PLC065596)
21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
adherence to good corporate practices by N.B.I. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY
LlMITED(hereinafter called as 'the Company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended 31 March 2022, complied with the applicable statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place subjectto the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2022 according to the
provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there-under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there-under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the rules and regulations made there-under

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings -Not Applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (,SEBI Act') to the extent applicable:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 ;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999- Not Applicable

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(14)
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f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009. Not Applicable;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018
- Not Applicable;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; Not Applicable

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; Not Applicable

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; Not Applicable

I) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 1996 and 2018

(vi) Rules, regulations and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to
Non- Banking Financial Companies, which are specifically applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors & Independent Directors. Though the Company has no Executive Director
but they have Manager, CFO and Company Secretary. The change in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws
and maintenance of financial records and books of account have not been reviewed in this audit
since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and other designated
professionals.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of
the Meeting of the Board of Directors.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 10.05.2022

Signature: SdI-
PractisingCompany Secretary - Mukesh Chaturvedi
FCS No.:11063
CP No.:3390
UDIN : F011063D000297921

(15)
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company
In today's context, the 'Corporate Social Responsibility' (CSR) is defined as a mandatory way
for a Company to balance its Economic, Social and Environmental objectives while enhancing
the Shareholders' value and Stakeholders expectations.

The Company aims to focus on environment preservation, spreading education, sports and
supporting needy people of the society for their overall upliftment. Though its social activities
are to focus primarily on areas surrounding its operations, which may include people I
programs which may not be so related strictly considering overall upliftment objectives.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
The CSR Committee comprises 4 members, of which two are Independent Directors. Th'e
Committee met once during the reporting period on 02nd February, 2022. The details of
members and the meeting are as under:

81. Nameot Designation I Nature Number ot meetings Number of meetings of CSA

No. Director of Directorship otCSA Committee Committee attended during
held during the year the year

1. Mr. Tapas Kumar Chairman 1 1
Bhattacharya (Independent Director)

2. Mr. Debasish Ray Member 1 1(Independent Director)

3. Mr. B L Gaggar Member(Non-executive 1 1Non-IndependentDirector)

4. Mr. J P Mundra Member(Non-executive 1 1Non-IndependentDirector)

3. Web-link where Composition of CSRcommittee, CSRPolicy and CSR projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.
The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the said Policy along with composition of CSR Committee
and CSR Projects are placed on the website of the Company and the web link for the same
is: http://www.nbi-india.co.inlpolicies/202111 09_NBI_CSR_Policy_2021.pdf

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report)

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3)of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, If any:

(Rs Lacs)

SI INo.
Financial Year I Amount available for set-off from IAmount required to be set- off for

preceding financial years (in Rs) the financial year, if any (in Rs)

NIL

(16)
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6. Average net profit ofthe company as per section 135(5): Rs. (134.76) Lacs

7. (a) TlNo percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): -2.69
Lacs

(b) Surplus arising out of the eSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: NIL

(c) Amount required to be set offforthefinancial year, if any: NIL

(d) Total eSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b· 7c): NIL

8. (a) eSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

Amount Unspent (In Rs.)

Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as under Schedule VII as per second proviso
Financial Year per section 135(6) to section 135(5)

(in Rs.) Name of theAmount Dateof transfer
Fund

Amount Dateof transfer

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sl. Name Itemlrom Local Location 01 Project Amount Amount spent In Amount transler Mode 01 Mode 01
No. olthe the list area the project. duration alionted the current to Unspent CSR Implementa· Implementation

Project. 01 (YeSINo.) lor the linanelal Year AccounllOl tion Through
activities project (in Rs.) the project as Direct Implementing

in Schedule (In Rs.) per Section (VesINo) Agency
VII 135(6)

to the Act.
State I Districl

(in Rs.) II eSRName Relistration
No.

NIL

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl. Name Item from Local Location of the project. Amount Mode of Mode of
No. ofthe the list of area spent Implementa· Implementation

Project. activities (Yes/No.) for the tion Through
In Schedule project Direct Implementing

Vii (in Rs.) (YesINo) Agency
to IheAcl.

State I District J CSRName Registration
No.

NIL
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - NIL

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- Not Applicable

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. Amount
No. Particular (Rs. Lacs)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (2.69)

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL

(iv) Surplus arising out of the eSA projects or programmes or activities of NIL
the previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] NIL

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SI. Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund Amount
No. Financial transferred spent in specified under Schedule VII as remaining to

Year. to Unspent the per section 135(6), If any. be spent in
CSR reporting succeeding

Account Financial financial
under Year years

section (In Rs.Lacs). (In Rs. Lacs)
135 (6) Name Amount Date of

(in Rs. Lacs) of the (in Rs.) transfer
Fund

1. 2018-19 NIL 59.11 NIL NIL NotApplicable NIL

2. 2019-20 NIL 59.70 NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL

3. 2020-21 NIL NIL NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL

TOTAL 118.81
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing proJects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

SI. Project Name of Financial ProJect Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. 10. the Year In duration amount spent on amount spent project·

Project which the allocated the project at the end of Completed
project for the In the reporting 10ngoing.was project reporting Financial Year.commenced (In RS.). Financial (In Rs.)

Year
(in Ra).

NIL

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset): Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5) : Not Applicable

For N.B.I. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
Place: Kolkata
Date: 31st May, 2022

J.P. Mundra
Director

DIN:00630475

T.K. Bhattacharya
Chairman of

CSR Committee
DIN: 00711665

(19)
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy)

N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited (NBI) believes that for its operation and growth to
be sustainable, it has to be responsive to social needs. Its progress is thus underlined by strict
adherence to environment preservation, social upliftment etc. NBI believes in making social
development as an integral part of its business activities so as to bring about a meaningful
change in the lives of people. NBI considers social responsibility as a voluntary act rather than
an additional activity mandated by statute.

NBI has in line with / in conformity with the statutory requirement, prepared its eSA Policy. NBI
will maintain that all the activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the
policy and that the projects and activities that will be undertaken are in full compliance with
Schedule VII ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

The contents of NBl's CSA Policy are given below:-

1. Vision, Objective and Scope of the Policy

NBI Programmes will focus on supporting needy people of the society for their overall
upliftment. Though its social activities will be focusing primarily on areas surrounding
its operations, it may include people / programs which may not be so related strictly
considering overall upliftment objectives.

2. Mandate of Corporate Social Responsibility

NBI is committed to spend 2% of its Average Net Profits of last three financial years as
defined in the Rules towards its social initiatives.

3. BoardCommittee

The CSA Committee of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by
the Company.

4. Identification of Projects and Modalities of Project Execution

The projects to be undertaken by the Company shall conform to the guidelines
formulated or laid down by the Government from time to time under Schedule VII to
the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Organisational Mechanism

NBI has co-promoted a Section 8 Company alongwith other Companies to undertake
activities relating to development of sports in fulfilling its CSR objectives.

6. Implementation

CSR Committee of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities /
initiatives and establishing a monitoring mechanism in line with the policy of the
company.

(20)
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7. Budget-CSR Corpus

NBI.wi!1~!I~ate necessary budget after the beginning of relevant accounting year for
social mlnatlves. Fund allocation for various activities will be made on suitable and/or
progressive basis.

8. Performance Management

NBI will adopt suitable approach for measuring the actual performance of the projects
undertaken and Audit Committee of the Board of the Company shall review the
performance.

9. Information Dissemination and Policy Communication

The Company's engagement in this domain shall be disseminated on its website and
through its Annual Reports etc.

10. Management Commitment

Our Board of 0 rectors, Manageme~t and all 0' emp oyees Subscribe to the
philosophy of compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity and
compassion. characterised by a willingness to bui da society that worKs for everyone.
This is the cornerstone of our CSR Po icy.

11. Review of Policy

CSR Committee of the Board of N.B.l.lndustrial Finance Company Umited wl1l review
the policy from time to time based on tne changing needs and aspirations of the target

beneficiaries and make suitab:e modificationS as may be necessary.

For N.B.!. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

Place : Koikata
Date: 31st May. 2022

T. K. Bhattacharya
Chairman of CSR

Committee
OlN-00711665

J.P. Mundra
Director

DIN -00630475
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Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of the director

Introduction

N.B.!. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd. (NBI) believes that an enlightened Board consciously
creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the
quality of governance.

NBI recognizes the importance of independent directors in achieving the effectiveness of the
Board. NBI aims to have an optimum combination of Non-Executive and Independent
Directors.

Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the independence
of Directors, in case of their appointment as independent directors of the Company.

Terms and References

In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:

"Director" means a director appointed to the Board ofthe Company.

"Nomination & Remuneration Committee" means the committee constituted by NBI's
Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

"Independent Director" means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

Policy
Qualifications and Criteria
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on an annual basis,
appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its
individual members. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience
that are relevant forthe Company's business operations.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members. the Committee may take into account
factors such as:

• General understanding of the Company's business dynamics and social perspective;

• Educational and professional background;
• Standing in the profession;
• Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;
• Willingness to devote sufficient time and zeal in carrying out their duties and

responsibilities effectively.

The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

• Shall possess a Director Identification Number (DIN);
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• Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;
• Shall give his written consent in prescribed form to act as a Director;
• Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a

Committee Member, the Committee Meetings;
• Shall abide by the ethics policy established by the Company for Directors, employees

and Senior Management Personnel;
• Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or Companies or bodies

corporate, firms, or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the
first meeting of the Board in every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a
change in the disclosures already made;

• Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the
Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant laws.

The Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a group that best
enables the success of the Company's business.

Criteria of Independence

The Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment / re-
appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess
determination of independence when any new interests or relationships are disclosed by the
Director.

To follow the criteria of independence as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors shall abide by the "Code for Independent Directors" as specified in
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.

Other directorships / committee memberships

The Board members are expected to have adequate time, expertise and experience to
contribute to effective Board performance. The Committee shall take into account the nature
of, and the time involved in a Director's service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of
the individual Director and making its recommendations to the Board.

A Director shall not serve as Director, including any alternate directorship, in more than 20
companies of which not more than 10 shall be Public Limited Companies.

A Director shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies and not
more than 3 Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-time Director/Managing
Director in any Listed entity.

A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 committees or act as Chairperson of more
than 5 committees across all listed entities in which he /she is a director.

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stake
holders' Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall
be included and all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign
Companies, high value debt listed entities and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013 shall be excluded.
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Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees

Introduction
N.B.1. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd. (NBI) recognizes the importance of aligning the business
objectives with specific and measurable individual objectives. The Company has therefore
formulated the remuneration policy for its directors, key managenal personnel and other
employees keeping in view the following objectives:

Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate talent to run the Company successfully.
Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the
performance benchmarks.
Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals. However, there is no incentive pay at present.

Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees of the Company.

Terms and References

In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:

"Director" means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

"Key Managerial Personnel" means
i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a

Whole-time Director;
ii) the Company Secretary;
iii) the Chief Financial Officer; and
iv) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

"Nomination & Remuneration Committee" means the committee constituted by NBI's
Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Policy
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of
the Company within the overall limits subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company.
Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board
and the Committees thereof. In addition to the sitting fees the Non-Executive Directors shall be
entitled to be paid their reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred for attending
Board and Committee meetings or otherwise incurred in the discharge of their duties as
Directors. .
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall also
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees of the Company. Employee individual remuneration shall be determined according
to their qualifications, and work experience as well as their roles and responsibilities and shall
be based on various factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority and experience.
The remuneration structure of the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees shall mainly include the following:

a) Basic Pay
b) Perquisites and Allowances
c) Retiral Benefits

(24)



87th Annual Report 2021-22
N.B.I. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

CIN : L65923WB1936PLC065596

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014

i) Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the
employees of the Company for the financial year:

Not Applicable. as none of the directors draw remuneration except sitting fees for Board /
Committee meetings.

ii) Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year
9.62%.

iii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
10.12%.

iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
5 (Five)

v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration

The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2021-
22 was 9.80%. Percentage increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was
9.62%.

vi) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.
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Business Responsibility Report

Section A General Information about the Company

Corporate Identification Number (CIN)
of the Company

2 Name of the Company

3 Registered Address

4 Website

5 Emailid

6 Financial year reported

7 Sector(s} that the company is engaged in

8 Key services provided by the company

9 Total number of locations where business
activity is undertaken by the company

10 Market served by the company

Section B Financial details of the company

Paid up Capital

2
3

4

Total Turnover

Profit after tax

Total spending on CSR as percentage of
Profit after Tax (%)

L65923VVB1936PLC065596

N.B.I. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD.

21, Strand Road, Kolkata 700 001

www.nbi-india.co.in

nbifinance@ymail.com

1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022

Non-Banking Financial Activity

Investment Activity

Kolkata

India

Rs.122.84Iacs

Rs.1228.24Iacs

Rs. 794.48 lacs

This year there was no need for
spending on CSR activities.
Refer Annual Report on CSR activities.

Not Applicable this year.

Section C Other details

Does the Company has any Subsidiary No
Company/Companies?

2 Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies Not Applicable
participate in the BR Initiatives of the
parent company? If yes, then indicate
the number of such subsidiary company(s}

3 Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, No
distributors etc.) that the Company does
business with, participate in the BR
initiatives of the company? If yes, then
indicate the percentage of such entity /
entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%,
More than 60%)

5 List of the activities in which expenditure
in 4 above has been incurred
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Section 0 BR Information

Details of director(s)/ Officer responsible for SR

(a) Details of the Director/Directors responsible for
implementation of the SR policy/policies:

(b)

DIN

Name

Designation

Details of SR head:

DIN (if applicable)

Name

Designation

Telephone number

E-mail id

Principle - wise (as per NGRSC) SR
policy/policies

Govemance related to BR

00012210

Ashok Bhandari

Chairman

Not Applicable

Ashish Kedia

Company Secretary

033-22309601-03

nbifinance@ymail.com

Included in this report

Included in this report

Included in this report

2

3

Section E Principle-wise performance

1 Principle-wise performance
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Preface
As mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), India's top 1000 listed
entities based on market capitalisation on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited. (NSE), are required to submit a 'Business Responsibility Report' (BRR) along
with their Annual Report. Your Company's Business Responsibility Report follows the National
Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct (NGRBC) as formulated by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) and includes Company's responses to questions on our practices and
performance on key principles defined by Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), covering topics across
environment, governance, social responsibility and stakeholder relationships.

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics,
Transparency and Accountability
NBI endeavours to adopt high standards of corporate governance and adheres to all applicable
guidelines with transparent disclosures about the Company's performance. The values of
ethics, transparency and accountability are ingrained into its daily operations. NBI has a Code
of Conduct for the Company's Directors and Senior Management, which supports the
functioning of the Company in an ethical manner. NBI follows the Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI). The Code of
Conduct applies to the Directors and the Senior Management and all employees of the
Company.

A Whistle Blower PolicyNigil Mechanism is also in place, which provides opportunity to all
stakeholders to report any concerns/issueslincidents about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the Code and Policies of the Company.

Any employee can report to the management regarding instances of unethical behaviour,
suspected fraud or violation of the Code of Conduct or ethics policy. In order to safeguard
employees, who report any unethical behaviour, against victimization, sufficient measures
have also been put in place.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute
to sustainability throughout their life cycle
NBI is an investment company and is not involved in any manufacturing activity or services
under the purview of BRR.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees
The Company did not have any specially-abled employee or recognized employee
association. NBI is aware that employees are an essential part of a company's success. The
Company aims to attract qualified personnel and invests in their growth and development. NBI
regularly engages its employees and sponsors them to attend various seminars and other
educational programmes to keep them updated. NBI has various policies and procedures in
place to prevent any kind of discrimination. The 'Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace' ensures the safety and security of its female employees. The Company did not
have any child labour nor did it received any complaint relating to child labour, forced labour,
involuntary labour or sexual harassment in FY 2021-22 and none are pendingas of 31 st March
2022.
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Principle 4: Businesses should respect the Interests of, and be responsive towards all
stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
NBI is an equal opportunity employer and ensures that its remuneration practices are based on
merit, irrespective of the person's ethnic background or gender. These are regularly updated
and are in line with the market benchmarks. In addition, the Company practices affirmative
action and ensures there is no discrimination of any type against socially disadvantaged
sections at the workplace. The Company has a well-established CSR policy which reflects the
objective of economic and social development to create a positive impact.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights
NBI ensures strict compliance with all applicable laws of the land that pertain to human rights
and is dedicated to safeguarding the human rights of all its employees. The Company did not
receive any complaint relating to violation of human rights in FY 2021-22.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the
environment
NBI endeavours to manage its business in a manner that conserves the environment. The
Company does not have any significant direct environmental impact as it is an investment
company with no manufacturing operations.

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged In Influencing public and regulatory polley,
should do so In a responsible manner
The Company is active in putting forward its views on formulation of new industry standards
and regulatory developments pertaining to the non-banking finance sector. Furthermore, the
Company strives to balance the interests of various stakeholders while proposing any
recommendations.

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development
NBI believes that measurement of growth and success lies beyond balance sheets and
conventional economic indices, rather it is best reflected in the difference that business and
industry make in the lives of people. The CSR initiatives of the Company are aimed at overall
development of the society.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and
consumers In a responsible manner
Being an investment company, NBI does not have any direct customer or consumer
interface.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited ("Company") is pleased to present the
Company's Report on Corporate Governance forthe year ended 31" March, 2022. This Report
includes a review of how corporate governance acts as the foundation for our corporate activity
and is embedded in our business and the decisions we make. Corporate governance is about
promoting fairness, transparency, accountability, commitment to values, ethical business
conduct and about constderinq all stakeholders' interests while conducting business. It is
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations),
and amendments thereto. It contains the Corporate Governance policies and practices of
N.B.l.lndustrial Finance Co. Ltd.

(A) COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We believe that corporate governance is a continuous journey towards sustainable value
creation for all the stakeholders, which is driven by our values and built on the foundation of
Assurance. It encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company's
affairs are being managed in a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and
fairness in all transactions in the widest sense. Our Corporate Governance principles are a
reflection of our culture, our policies, our relationship with stakeholders and our commitment to
values and built on the foundation of assurance. The Board of Directors ("Board") helps to
ensure that we have appropriate governance in place, both to support our operations and
protect our Members' interest. As a good corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound
corporate practices based on conscience, openness, fairness, professionalism and
accountability in building confidence of its various stakeholders in it thereby paving the way for
its long-term success. The requirements under the Listing Regulations mandated by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") have been fully complied with. We believe,
Corporate Governance is not just a destination, but a journey to constantly improve sustainable
value creation. It is an upward-moving target that we collectively strive to achieve. The
Company is fully committed to the principles of transparency, integrity and accountability in all
spheres of its operations and has been practicing the principles of good corporate governance
over the years. We are committed to meet the aspirations of all our stakeholders. In keeping
with this commitment, the Company has been upholding fair and ethical business and
corporate practices and transparency in its dealings and continuously endeavors to review,
strengthen and upgrade its systems and procedures so as to bring in transparency and
efficiency in its business.

(B) Boardof Directors

The members of the Board of the Company are eminent personalities from various fields. We
believe that an enlightened Board consciously creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-
term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of governance. Keeping with the
commitment to the principles of integrity and transparency in business operations for good
corporate governance, the Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of independent
and non-independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board and to separate the
Board functions of governance and management. The Board's actions and decisions are
aligned with the Company's best interests. The Board is entrusted with the ultimate
responsibility of the management, direction and performance of the Company. The Board is
committed to the goal of sustainably elevating the Company's value creation. As its primary role
is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and
independent view to the Company's management while discharging its responsibilities, thus
ensuring that the management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures.
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Composition

The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 and Regulation 17A of the
SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section149 of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of the
provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Directors of the Company submit
necessary disclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Board andl or the
Committees of other companies with changes therein, if any, on a periodical basis. The Board
comprises of Independent and Non- Independent Directors. The directors are persons of
eminence in areas such as profession, business, industry, finance, law, administration, etc. and
bring with them experience/skills which add value to the performance of the Board. The
directors are selected purely on the basis of merit with no discrimination on race, colour,
religion, gender or nationality. The present composition broadly meets this objective. The
strength of the Board as on 31st March, 2022 was seven (7) members all of whom are Non-
Executive Directors. Out of them four (4) are Independent Directors (including one-woman
independent director) and three (3) are Non- Independent Directors (including one Woman
Director). Shri Ashok Bhandari an Independent Director is the Chairman of the Board.

The Independent Directors on the Board are competent and respected professionals from their
respective fields and have vast experience in general corporate management, finance,
investment and other allied fields which enable them to contribute effectively to the Company.
All Independent Directors make annual disclosure of their Independence to the Company. The
day to day management of the Company is conducted by the Manager subject to the
supervision, direction and control of the Board of Directors. The Independent Directors have
made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material financial andlor
commercial transactions between them and their relatives and the company which could have
potential conflict of interest with the company at large. In the opinion of the Board, the
independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and the
Companies Act, 2013 and are independent of the management.

Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors:

Five Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2021-22 on the following dates:

SI Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors
No. attended

1 18th June, 2021 6

2 14th August, 2021 6

3 15th November, 2021 6

4 16th December, 2021 6

5 14th February, 2022 7
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Details ofthe Board of Directors and External Directorships

Particulars of the Board's Composition, Directors' Attendance at Board Meetings and at the
previous Annual General Meeting, number of other Directorships and Board-Committee
memberships held as on 31·'March, 2022, are given below:

51 Name of the Category No. of Attended No. of Numberof other
No. Director Board last other Board Committee

Meetings AGM Directorship positions (@)

attended (0) As As
ChairmanMember

1 Ashok Bhandari Independent 5 Yes 7 1 7

2 B.L. Gaggar Non-Executive 5 Yes 3 - 1

3 Riya Puja Jain Non-Executive 1 No 0 - -
4 J.P. Mundra Non-Executive 5 Yes 5 1 -
5 T.K. Bhattacharya Independent 5 Yes 1 - 2

6 Debasish Ray Independent 5 Yes 0 - -
7 Priyanka Mohta Independent 5 Yes 0 - -

Notes:
(*) includes directorships held in public limited Companies only.

(Directorships held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies
registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded)
includes only positions held in Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee of the Board of Directors as per Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations.

None of the directors hold office as a director, including as an alternate director, in more than
twenty companies at the same time. None of them has directorships in more than ten public
companies. For reckoning the limit of public companies, directorships of private companies
that are either holding or subsidiary companies of a public company are included; while
directorships in dormant companies are excluded. For the purpose of reckoning the
directorships in listed companies, only equity listed companies have been considered.

(@)

As per declarations received, no director serves as an independent director in more than seven
equity listed companies or in more than three equity listed companies if he/she is a whole-time
director/managing director in any listed company.

None of the directors was a member in more than ten committees, nor a chairperson in more
than five committees across all public companies in which he/she was a director.

Notwithstanding the number of directorships, as highlighted herein, the outstanding
attendance record and participation of the directors in Board/Committee meetings indicates
their commitment and ability to devote adequate time to their responsibilities as
Board/Committee members.

Web link for Familiarisation Program for Independent Directors is http://www.nbi-
india.co.inlpolicies/NBI_Familiarisation_Program.pdf
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Names of the other listed entities where the director is a director alongwith category of
directorship:

SI Name of the Category
No. Director

1 Ashok Bhandari 1) Maharashtra Seamless Ltd 1)Independent Director

2) Maithan Alloys Ltd 2)lndependent Director

3) Rupa& Co. Ltd. 3)lndependent Director

4) Skipper Ltd. 4)lndependent Director

5) IFB Industries Ltd. 5)lndependent Director

2 Riya Puja Jain NIL NIL

3 B.L. Gaggar NIL NIL

4 J.P. Mundra Western India Commercial Non-Executive Non-
Co. Ltd. Independent Director

5 T.K. Bhattacharya Western India Commercial Non-Executive-
Co. Ltd. Independent Director

6 Debasish Ray NIL NIL

7 Priyanka Mohta NIL NIL

None of the Non-executive Directors holds any shares or convertible instruments in the
Company.

None of the directors of the Company are related inter-se

Skills/Expertise/Competencies of Directors

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has identified the
below mentioned skills I expertise I competencies in the context of the business and the sector
in which the Company is operating, for the Company to function effectively:

Financial, Regulatory / Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finance function
Legal & Risk of an enterprise, resulting in proficiency in financial management,
Management capital allocation and financial reporting process or experience in

actively supervising various functions

Strategy and strategic Ability to think strategically, identify and assess strategic opportunities
planning & threats and contribute towards developing effective strategies in

the contextof the strategicobjectivesof the Company'spolicies& priorities.
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Business Exposure Experience in driving business success with an understanding of
diverse business environments, economic conditions, culture,
regulatory framework and a broad perspective on market
opportunities including exposure in the secondary market.

Leadership Extended leadership experience for a significant enterprise,
resulting in practical understanding of organisations, processes,
strategic planning and risk management. Demonstrated strengths
in developing talent, planning successions and driving change and
long-term growth.

Mergers and A history of leading growth through acquisitions and other
Acquisitions business combinations with the ability to assess 'build or buy'

decisions.

Corporate Governance Service on a public company board to develop insights about
maintaining board and management accountability, protecting
shareholder interests and observing appropriate governance
practices

The above skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Company are also actually
available with the Board as under:-

Name of the Financial, Strategy Business Ledership Mergersand Corporate
Director Regulatory / and Exposure AcquisitionsGovemance

Legal & Risk strategic
Management planning

Ashok Bhandari '" .I .I '" '" '"
Riya Puja Jain '" '" '"B.L. Gaggar '" '" '" '" '"J.P. Mundra '" '" '" '" .I
T.K. Bhattacharya '" '" '" '"Debasish Ray '" .I '" '"
Priyanka Mohta '" '" '" '"
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Independent Directors

Eminent people having an independent standing in their respective profession, and who can
effectively contribute to the Company's business and policy decisions are considered by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company, for appointment as
Independent Director on the Board. The NRC, inter alia, considers qualifications, positive
attributes, area of expertise, duties as Directors or Committee members.

Other Directorships

None of the Directors is a director in more than 10 public limited companies or acts as an
independent director in more than 7 listed companies. Further, none of the Directors acts as a
member of more than 10 committees or acts as a chairman of more than 5 committees across
all public limited companies in which he/she is a director.

Code of Conduct

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and the Code (the Code) is
applicable to the Directors and employees. The Code gives the guidance and support needed
for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. The Code reflects the core values of the
Company viz. Ownership Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence. All the
directors including Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance
to the Code of Conduct as on March 31, 2022. A declaration to this effect, signed by the
Manager and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), annexed hereto forms part of this report. The code
is available on the official website of the company: www.nbi-india.co.in

(A) Committees of the Board

In order to enable Board to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the
authority delegated to each of the Committees, Board has constituted following committees.
Each Committee of the Board is guided by its charter, which defines the scope, powers and
composition of the Committee. All decisions and recommendations of the Committees are
placed before the Board for information or approval.

The Board has constituted following Committees of Directors:

1) Audit Committee,
2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
3) Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
4) Risk Management Committee and
5) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation
18 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the Act. The Audit Committee as on
31 st March, 2022 comprises of three Independent Directors and one Non-Independent director.
All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have accounting or related
financial management expertise. The primary purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the
Board of Directors (the "Board") of N.B.1. Industrial Finance Company Limited, (the
"Company") in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to:
a) the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company, including the integrity

of the audited financial results and other financial information provided by the Company
to its stakeholders, the public, the stock exchange and others,

b) the Company's compliances with legal and regulatory requirements,
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c) the Company's independent auditors' qualification and independence,
d)· the audit of the Company's financial statements, and the performance of the Company's

internal audit function and its Independent Auditors.

Terms of Reference:

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee covers areas mentioned under Part C of
Schedule II [See Regulation 18(3)] of the Listing Regulationsand section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013, besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. All the Members of
the Audit Committee are qualified and having insight to interpret and understand financial
statements. The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee are outlined here under:

Review of the company's financial reporting process, adequacy of internal control systems
and the disclosure of its financial information;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:-
a. matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement of the

Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons forthe same;
c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management;
d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
f. disclosu re of any related party transactions;
g. modified opinion(s), if any, in the draft audit report.

Reviewing the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and
the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up
steps in the matter;

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the company;

Approval of paymentto statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them;

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness
of audit process;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern:

Approval (including omnibus approval) or any subsequent modification of transactions
with related parties;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including frequency of internal audit
reports;

Reviewing the findings of any observations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control system of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the Board;
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Evaluation of internal financial controls;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adequacy of the internal control system;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors;

Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances / investment by the holding company in
the subsidiary company(ies) exceeding Rs.100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments;

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

Reviewing management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the
statutory auditors;

Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the intemal auditor;

Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;

To review the functioning of whistle blower / vigil mechanism;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Reviewing valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever necessary.

Statement of deviations:

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation{s) including report of monitoring agency, wherever
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(b) Annual Statement of funds utilised for purpose other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, wherever applicable.

• Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit
committee or as may be referred/assigned by the Board.

Constitution of the Audit Committee
The Composition of the Committee, together with the details ofthe attendance of each member
as at 31" March, 2022 is given below:

SI Name of the Designation Meetings Category
No. Director Attended

1. T.K. Bhattacharya Chairman 5 Non-ExecutiveIndependentDirector

2. Ashok Bhandari Member 5 Non-ExecutiveIndependentDirector

3. Debasish Ray Member 5 Non-ExecutiveIndependentDirector

4. J.P. Mundra Member 5 Non- ExecutiveNon-Independent
Director
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Meetings of the Audit Committee
Five Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2021-22 on the following
dates:

./ 18thJune, 2021

./ 14thAugust, 2021

./ 15'" November, 2021

./ 16thDecember, 2021

./ 14thFebruary, 2022

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board is constituted in
compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. The committed formulates the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommends to the Board a policy
relating to the remuneration for the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The Committee
reviews and recommends payment of annual salaries, commission and other conditions of the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The remuneration policy is directed towards
rewarding performance based on review of performance / achievements on a periodical basis.
No Stock option has been granted to any of the Directors during the financial year 2021-22. The
remuneration policy forms part of the Directors Report. The Company doesn't have any
pecuniary relationship or transaction with any of the non-executive directors. None of the
Directors have been given any remuneration during the financial year under review except
Meeting Fees.

The briefterms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

(a) To formulate and review the criteria that must be followed for determining qualifications,
positive attributes/experience for appointment and independence of a director;

(b) To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees and to ensure compliance with the
remuneration policy set forth by the Company;

(c) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in
Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the
board fortheir appointment and/or removal;

(d) To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and of
the board of directors as a whole;

(e) To extent or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

(f) To report on the systems and on the amount of the annual remuneration, in whatever
form, of directors and key managerial/senior management personnel to the Board.

(g) To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the
performance of its duties.
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Constitution and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

The Composition of the Committee together with the details of the attendance of each member
at the meetings during the financial year 2021-22 is given below:

SI Name of the Category Designation Meetings
No. Director Attended

1. T.K. Bhattacharya Non-ExecutiveIndependentDirector Chairman 3

2. Ashok Bhandari Non-ExecutiveIndependentDirector Member 3

3. B.L. Gaggar Non-ExecutiveNon-Independent Member 3
Director

4. Debasish Ray Non- ExecutiveNon-Independent Member 3
Director

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Three NRC Meetings were held during the financial year2021-22 on the following dates:

.I 26"'April,2021

.I 14'" August, 2021

.I 15'" November, 2021

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors
• Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
• Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.
• Adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of the Company.
• Meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the Board! Committee meetings.

Details of meeting fees paid to the Directors for the year ended 31$I March, 2022:

Director Category Sitting Fees
(Rs.)

Ashok Bhandari Non- Executive -Independent Director 65,000

B.L. Gaggar Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 65,000
Riya Puja Jain Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 5,000

J.P. Mundra Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 65,000

T.K. Bhattacharya Non- Executive -Independent Director 77,000

Debasish Ray Non- Executive -Independent Director 61,000

Priyanka Mohta Non- Executive -Independent Director 25,000

Total 3,63,000

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee (SRC) of the Board is in
line with the prescribed provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
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Listing Regulations and inter alia approves transfer & transmission of shares, issue of
duplicate/re-materialised shares and consolidation & splitting of certificates, review
measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders, review the
adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, redressal of complaints
from investors including inter-alia non-receipt of annual reports and non-receipt of
declared dividends etc.

Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Composition of the Committee during the year 2021-22 is given below:

51 Name of the Designation Category
No. Director

1. B.L. Gaggar Chairman Non- Executive Non-Independent Director

2. J.P. Mundra Member Non- Executive Non-Independent Director

3. T.K. Bhattacharya Member Non- Executive Independent Director

Meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Four Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2021-
22 on-

1) 21" June, 2021
2) 14'" August, 2021
3) 21 "October, 2021
4) 16t"December, 2021

Further the details of the Compliance Officer designated for handling of the Investor grievances
is provided here under:

Name Ashish Kedia

Address 21, Strand Road, Kolkata- 700 001 (West Bengal).

Telephone No 033- 2230 7905

E-mail nbifinance@ymail.com

Details of Pending Investor Grievances and Compliance Officer

The grievances received were resolved during the financial year and all the queries from the
stakeholders were attended promptly except in cases of deficiency in documents. Further there
were no pending transfers for the year under review.

4. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been constituted in line with Regulation 21 of the Listing
Regulations. The Company has come within the top 1000 listed entities by market
capitalization as on 31st March, 2021 and the requirement to comply with Regulation 21 of the
Listing Regulations has become mandatory.
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Constitution of the Risk Management Committee

The Composition of the Committee during the year 2021-22 is given below:

51 Name of the Designation Category
No. Member

1. Ashok Bhandari Chairman Non- Executive Independent Director

2. B.L. Gaggar Member Non- Executive Non-Independent Director

3. S.P. Kumar Member Manager & CFO

The primary role and responsibility of the Risk Management Committee is:

i. To formulate risk management policy which shall include:
• A framework for identification of intemal and external risks specifically faced by listed

entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly,
ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be
determined by the Committee.

• Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks.

• Business continuity plan.

ii. To review that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

iii. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems and processes;

iv. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

v. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

vi. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any)
shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee; and

vii. Such other aspects as the Board may consider appropriate and required from the
Committee from time to time.

viiLThe Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees, in
instances where there is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the
framework laid down by the board of directors.

Terms of Reference:

The brief terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are outlined here under:

- review of strategic risks arising out of adverse business decisions and lack of
responsiveness to changes;

- review of operational risks;

- review of financial and reporting risks:
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- review of compliance risks;

- review or discuss the Company's risk philosophy and the quantum of risk, on a broad
level that the Company, as an organization, is willing to accept in pursuit of stakeholder
value;

- inquiring about existing risk management processes and review the effectiveness of
those processes in identifying, assessing and managing the Company's most
significant enterprise-wide risk exposures;

- review periodically key risk indicators and management response thereto.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the Board for
formulating and overseeing the execution of the Company's CSR Policy as prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. The CSR Committee comprises of two
independent directors and two non-executive directors. The members of the CSR Committee
are:

SI Name Designation in Status in the
No. Company Committee

1. Shri T.K. Bhattacharya Independent Director Chairman

2. Shri Debasish Ray Independent Director Member

3. Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar Director Member

4. Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra Director Member

The Annual Report on CSR Activities as required under the Companies Act, 2013 for the year
ended 31" March, 2022 is attached to the Board's Report.

Meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

One CSR Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2021-22 on 2ndFebruary,
2022.

(D) Details of General Body Meeting

Annual General Meeting

The details of last 3 Annual General Meetings together with the details of the special resolution,
if any, passed thereat is provided hereunder:

Year Special

Ended Day, Date and Time Venue Resolutions
Passed

31st March, Thursday, 23rd September, 21 ,Strand Road, Yes
2021 2021 at 10:30 A.M. Koikata - 700 001

31st March, Monday, 28th September. 21 ,Strand Road, Yes
2020 2020 at 10:30 A.M. Kolkata - 700 001

31st March, Saturday, 14th September, Bharatiya Bhasha Parishad,
36A, Shakespeare Sarani, Yes

2019 2019 at 10:30 A.M. 4th Floor, Kolkata - 700 017
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Extraordinary General Meeting
An Extraordinary General Meeting of the members of the Company was called for appointing
the Statutory Auditors of the Company, on 27th January, 2022 at 10.30 A.M. at 21, Strand
Road, Kolkata -700001 to comply with the requirements of the Circular no. RBI/2021-22125-
Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/ SEC.01/ 08.91.001/2021- 22 dated 27 April 2021 [(Guidelines for
Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial
Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs») issued by the Reserve Bank of
India ('RBI Guidelines'). The members have appointed M/s. Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 302137E) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to
hold office until the conclusion of the 89th Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Remote e-voting and ballot at the AGM
SEBI has issued a circular dated 9 December 2020 for increase in the participation by the
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders. It has been decided to enable e-
voting to all the demat account holders, via a single login credential, through their demat
accounts/websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders will be
able to cast their vote without having to register again with the e-voting service providers
(ESPs). This will not only facilitate seamless authentication but also enhance the ease and
convenience of participating in the e-voting process.
The Company has engaged CDSL to provide e-voting facility to all the members. Members
whose names appear on the register of members as on the record date shall be eligible to
participate in the e-voting.
The facility for voting through ballot will also be made available at the AGM. Members who have
not already cast their votes by remote e-voting can exercise their vote at the AGM.
(E) Means of Communication
The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are forwarded to
Stock Exchange immediately upon approval by the Board of Directors and are simultaneously
published in newspapers in English and Bengali (regional language) namely Business
Standard and Sukhabar.
In accordance with the Listing Regulations, data pertaining to Shareholding Pattem, Quarterly
Financial Results and Other Details are forwarded to the Stock Exchange and are also
disseminated on the website of the Company.
During the year under review, no presentation was made to the institutional investors or
analysts.
General Shareholders' Information

Annual General Meeting Tuesday, the 30th August, 2022 at 4.00 P.M. at
21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
Book Closure Dates: 24.08.2022 to 30.08.2022 (both days inclusil e)
E-voting Dates: 27.08.2022 to 29.08.2022

Financial Year 2021-22

Dividend payment date No dividend has been recommended by the Board this year.

Listing onStockExchange The EguitySharesof theCompanyarelistedon:
NationalStockExchangeof IndiaLimited(NSE).
ExchangePlaza,BandraKurlaComplex,Bandra(East),Mumbai·400 051
TheCompanyhaspaidtheannuallistingfee of the exchangefor
the financialyear2022·23.

Stock Code NSE Symbol:NBIFIN

ISIN INE365101020
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Unclaimed Dividend

Pursuant to provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there
under, the Company has transferred the total amount of dividend which remained unpaid or
unclaimed forthe year 2016-17 to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company.

Further, as per provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, any money
transferred by the Company to the unpaid dividend account and remaining unclaimed for a
period of seven years from the date of such transfer shall be transferred to a fund called the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (the 'Fund') set up by the Central Government. The
members who have not yet encashed the dividend warrant(s) for the year 2016-17 (Final
Dividend) are requested to approach the Company with their warrants for re-validationlfresh
issuance.

The details of unpaid dividend and last date of transfer to IEPF are given hereunder:

Year Type of Dividend per Date of Dividend Last date for
Dividend share of declaration amount transfer of

~ 10/- of Dividend unpaid as on unpaid
(~) 31.03.2022 dividend in

(t) Investor
Education

and
Protection

Fund

2016-17 Final 1/- 16.09.2017 1,63,453 21.10.2024

Transfer of shares to IEPF

Pursuantto Section 124(6) of the Act and the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, all shares in respect of
which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be
transferred by the Company to the IEPF, within 30 days of such shares becoming due for
transfer. As provided under these Rules, the shareholder would be allowed to claim such
unpaid dividends and the shares transferred to the Fund by following the procedure prescribed
under the said IEPF Rules, 2016.

GENERAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS
Tentative Financial Calendar for the year 2022-23

Financial Year 1st April, 2022- 31st March, 2023
First quarter results Within 45 days of the end of the quarter
Second Quarter and Half-yearly results
Third quarter results
Fourth quarter & Annual results Within 60 days of the end of the financial year

Listing of Shares:
The Equity shares of the Company are listed at the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE).
The Company's Stock code is : NBIFIN
The security of the Company was never suspended from trading during the year 2021-22.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65923WB1936PLC065596
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Market Price Data during financial year 2021-2022:

Month High Low

April,2021 2040 1625.45

May, 2021 3200 1860

June, 2021 2475 2050

July, 2021 2384.10 2115.15

August, 2021 2975.45 2249

September, 2021 2899 2601

October, 2021 2798 2366.65

November, 2021 2590 2055

December, 2021 2797 2065.10

January, 2022 2688 2181.15

February, 2022 2360 1979

March,2022 2325.75 2075

Performance In comparison to broad-based Indices I.e. NSE

Indices NSE (Nifty 50) NBI Quote at NSE

01.04.2021 14631 1934

31.03.2022 17465 2219.80

Increase I (Decrease) 2834 285.80

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA)
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. acts as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the
Company having its registered office at 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata - 700 001.
Contact No.033-22482248, 22435029, Fax:033-22484787. Emailld: mdpldc@yahoo.com.
RTAaiso maintains a website: www.mdpl.in

Share Transfer System

a) Transfer of Securities held in physical Mode

As per SEBI norms, all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and
transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. Further, vide
circular dated 24th January, 2022, SEBI has notified that all request for duplicate issuance,
splitting and consolidation requests too will be processed in a demat mode only.

b) Nomination facility for shareholding

As per the provision of the Act, facility for making nomination is available for Members in
respect of shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form may obtain a
nomination form by writing to the Company Secretary of the Company or RTA. Members
holding shares in dematerialized form should contact their Depository Participant (DP) in this
regard.

c) Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account details:
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As required by SEBI. The regulator, vide circular dated 3rd November, 2021, and 15th
December, 2021, has mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details and nomination by holders
of physical securities by 31st March, 2023. Members are requested to submit their PAN, KYC
and nomination details to the Company's registrars.

d) Reconciliation of Share Capital

As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), quarterly audit of the
Company's share capital is being carried out by an independent external Auditor (Practicing
Company Secretary) with a view to reconcile the total share capital admitted with National
Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) and
shares held in physical form, with the issued and listed capital. The Auditors Certificate in
regard to the same is submitted to NSE.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31/03/2022

Share Holding No of Holders %age No of Shares % age

Upto 500 5,567 97.44 2,52,085 10.26

501 to 1000 85 1.49 63,388 2.58

1001 to 2000 29 0.51 41,126 1.67

2001 to 3000 10 0.18 24,446 1.00

3001 to 4000 1 0.02 3,642 0.15

4001 to 5000 2 0.04 8,800 0.36

5001 to 10000 6 0.11 42,430 1.73

Above 10000 13 0.23 20,20,889 82.26

Grand Total 5,713 100.00 24,56,806 100.00

Demateriallsation of Shares and Liquidity
As on 31" March, 2022, 88.55% of the Company's total equity shares representing 21,75,560
equity shares were held in dematerialized form and the rest were in physical form. The
Company's equity shares are available for trading in the depository systems of National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Status of total number of shares dematerialized and in physical form as on 31st March 2022:

Depository No. of Shares % of Paid up Capital

NSDL 21,00,264 85.49

CDSL 75,296 3.06

Physical 2,81,246 11.45

Total 24,56,806 100.00

Outstanding GDRsl ADRS/ Warrantsl Convertible Instruments
The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.
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Secretarial Audit
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, Mr.
Mukesh Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed by the Company to conduct
Secretarial Audit of records and documents of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report
confirms that the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Depositories Act, 1996, Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, and all the
relevant Regulations and Guidelines of the SEBI, as applicable to the Company. The audit also
covers the reconciliation of share capital on quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted
capital with NSDL & CDSL and total paid up and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total
paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total
number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL & CDSL.

Address for Correspondence

Company Secretary

Ashish Kedia

21, Strand Road,

Kolkata - 700 001

Tel: 033 -22309601

Fax: 033-22131650

EmaillD: nbifinance@ymail.com

Website: www.nbi-india.co.in

Share transfer are processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and approved by the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, if the documents are complete in all respects, within 15
days from the date of lodgment. The same is examined by a Practicing Company Secretary on
half yearly basis and a Certificate as required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations
is obtained and forwarded to NSE where the Company's shares are listed.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

SEBI vide circular dated 31d June, 2011 introduced SCORES, Le., "SEBI Complaints Redress
System" the system of processing of investors complaints in a centralized web based
complaints redressal portal known as 'SCORES'. The salient features of this system are:
centralized database of all Complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the
concerned Company and online viewing by investors of action taken on the complaints and
their current status.

The Company is registered with SEBI under the SCORES system.

Credit Ratings

No instances have occurred during the financial year 2021-22 which warrant the Company to
obtain Credit Rating.
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(F) Other Disclosures

a) During the financial year 2021-22 there was no materially significant Related Party
Transaction, with the Directors, or the Management, their relatives etc. having potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large except those disclosed in the Board's
Report.

b) The Company has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles forthe members of
Board and senior management personnel.

c) The Company has adopted a 'Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (,'the
Code") in accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended uptodate. The code
expressly lays down the guidelines and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be
made, by the directors and the senior management personnel while dealing with the
shares of the Company on the bourse and cautioning them on the consequences of non-
compliance thereof. The Company has also formed Whistle Blower Policy. Further, we
affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. Employees can
report to the Management concerns regarding unethical behavior, act or suspected fraud
or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct Policy.

d} The Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing
Regulations.

e} Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

Mukesh Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary, has issued a certificate as required
under clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, confirming that none of
the directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as director of the company by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed with this report.

f) Details oftotal fees paid to statutory auditors:-

The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditor are as follows:

Type of service FY2021-22 FY 2020-21

Audit Fees 80,000 46,000

Tax Audit Fees 8,000 8,000

Others - -
g} No complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was filed by any woman during the financial

year under report, hence no disclosures are applicable.

Non-Mandatory / Discretionary requirements of regulation 27(1) & Part E of Schedule II
ofthe SEBI Listing Regulations:

Shareholders Rights:
The quarterly/half yearly results are not sent to the shareholders. However, the same are
sent to the NSE and are also posted on the Company's website.

Auditor's Opinion:
The Company's financial statements for the financial year 2021-22 do not contain any audit
qualification.
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Reporting of internal auditor:
The internal auditors report to the Audit Committee.

Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading:
As reported here in above, the Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate,
monitor and report trading by insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015. This Policy also includes code of practices and procedures for fair
disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information, initial and continual disclosures. The
Board reviews the Policy I Code on a need-to-know basis. This Policy is available on our
website. The Company Secretary is the 'Compliance Officer". The Code of Conduct is
applicable to all Directors and deSignated persons as defined in the Code of Conduct.

Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance
As required by provisions of Chapter IV of the Listing Regulations, the Compliance Certificate
on Corporate Governance is annexed to this Report.

CEO and CFO Certification
The CFO acts as Manager of the Company as well. The Manager and CFO Certification is
provided in this Annual Report as required by the Listing Regulations.
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CERTIFICATE OF NON DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members
N.B.1. Industrial Finance Company Limited
(CIN:L65923WB1936PLC065596)

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (LODR), I hereby certify that

On the basis of the written representation / declaration received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022, none of the directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the company by the SEBI /
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 10" May, 2022

Mukesh Chaturvedi
Practising Company Secretary

FCS No. : 11063
CP No.: 3390

UDIN : F0110630000297901
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of N.B.I.lndustrial Finance Company Limited

I, Mukesh Chaturvedi, Company Secretary in Practice, the Secretarial Auditor of N.B.!.
Industrial Finance Company Limited ("the Company"), have examined the compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, forthe year ended on 31 st March 2022,
as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C, D and
E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (collectively referred to as "Listing
Regulations").

Management's Responsibility
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant
supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Corporate Governance Report as stipulated in the Listing Regulations,
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor's Responsibility
My responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether, the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in the Listing
Regulations referred to in above paragraph. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

I have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance
requirements by the Company.

Opinion
Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and
explanations provided by the Management, I certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Govemance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i)
of regulation 46(2) and paras C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the
year ended 31"' March, 2022.

I state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 1011>May, 2022

Mukesh Chaturvedi
Practicing Company Secretary

FCS: 11063
CP No.: 3390

UDIN : F011063D000298306
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Manager and CFO Certification

To,
The Board of Directors,
N.B.1. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD.
Kolkata

Dear members of the Board,

I, S.P. Kumar, Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, certify that:

1. I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of N.B.!.
INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information of the Company and the Board's Report for the financial
year ended March 31,2022.1 state that:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs for the
period presented in this report and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and confirm that there have been no material
weakness in internal controls over financial reporting including any corrective actions with
regard to deficiencies.

4. I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
a. that there were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during

the year;
b. All significant Changes in accounting policies made during the year, if any, and that the

same have been disclosed suitably in the notes to the financial statements; and
c. that there were no instances of significant fraud that involve management or other

employees who have a significant role in the Company's internal control system over
financial reporting.

5. I further declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this Report.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 31stMay 2022

S.P. Kumar
Manager and
Chief Financial Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND OUTLOOK

The global economy grew by 5.9% in 2021 following a contraction of 3.1 % in 2020. Countries
across the globe focused on vaccination coverage and implemented various economic stimuli
to minimise the impact of COVID-19 and hasten economic recovery. The growth momentum
started slowing towards the end of 2021, as the effects of fiscal and monetary stimuli dissipated
along with the onset of the Omicron variant of COVID-19.

While the early forecast for global economic growth in 2022, the recent geo-political tensions
and conflict in Ukraine will weigh on global growth projections and also lead to high inflation in
the short term. The conflict is a major blow to the global economy that will hurt growth and raise
prices.

The International Monetary Fund in its recent report slashed its forecast for global economic
growth by nearly a full percentage point, citing Russia's war in Ukraine, and warning that
inflation was now a "clear and present danger" for many countries.

The war is expected to further increase inflation, the IMF said in its latest World Economic
Outlook, warning that a further tightening of Western sanctions on Russia to target energy
exports would cause another major drop in global output.

According to IMF, other risks to the outlook include a sharper- than expected deceleration in
China prompted by a flare-up of COVID-1910ckdowns. Rising prices for food, energy and other
goods could trigger social unrest, particularly in vulnerable developing countries.

Downgrading its forecasts for the second time this year, IMF said it now projects global growth
of 3.6% in both 2022 and 2023, a drop of 0.8 and 0.2 percentage point, respectively, from its
January forecast due to the war's direct impact on Russia and Ukraine and global spillovers.
Medium-term global growth is expected to decline to about 3.3% over the medium- term,
compared to an average of 4.1 % in the period from 2004 to 2013, and growth of 6.1 % in 2021.

INDIAN ECONOMY

Among above global economy backdrop, strong economic fundamentals will likely help India
avoid the long-term impacts of the ongoing conflict in Ukraine. However, the crisis has clouded
India's growth outlook as well. Crude oil prices are lingering much above US$1 00 per barrel and
edible oil prices are up 20% - all of which are critical imports from the two warring nations. India
also partly meets its fertilizer needs from the region. For India, which has been battling inflation
for a while now, this situation is making matters worse. Higher fuel and fertilizer prices will
increase subsidy costs. Furthermore, capital outflows and rising import bills will weigh on the
current account balance and currency valuation.

The successful rollout of the world's largest vaccination drive, pick-up in government
expenditure and better preparedness compared with the first wave of the pandemic limited the
negative economic impact of the second wave.

India's gross domestic product (GDP) is expected to have grown around 8.7% in the financial
year 2021-22, which is the highest among the leading economies, and the growth is likely to be
around 7-7.5% in the current financial year, according to some of the latest estimates. India's
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growth trajectory is expected to remain steady in 2022-23, barring prolonged geo-political
tensions, supported by various dynamic reforms undertaken by the govemment during the past
few years.

The overall Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation has been hovering around 7%, i.e. beyond
the upper end of RBI's tolerance and could remain elevated in the near future due to high input
cost pressures, largely stemming from supply chain disruptions and upward pressure on crude
oil.

NBFC INDUSTRY & BUSINESS UPDATE

India's financial sector is a highly diversified one comprising commercial banks, insurance
companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and
other smaller financial entities. The sector is predominantly driven by banking and non-banking
financial companies ('NBFCs'). Over the past few years NBFCs have emerged as important
financial intermediaries, particularly for the small-scale and retail sectors in underserved areas
and unbanked sectors. The sector turned out to be growth engine in an environment where
significant importance is assigned to financial inclusion and have aided the economy in
employment generation and wealth creation by making credit available to the rural segment.
However, in recent times the sector is becoming a weaker segment in Indian financial system.

COMPANY'S POSITION

The Company NBI is registered with the RBI as a Non-Banking Financial Institution and is
categorized as "Non-Deposit taking NBFC" (NBFC-ND). The operations of the company
during the year were centered mainly around investments in shares and securities.
Additionally the company was investing in Mutual Funds too. The main income of the Company
is dividend income on long-term investments, interest on fixed deposit and profit from sale of
investments. The results of the Company's operations for the financial year ended 31"' March,
2022 have been dealt with in the Director's Report.

The Company, being into finance and investment activity, the impact of movement of stock
markets affects its profitability. The Company has long-term orientation in its investments and
mainly invests in listed equities. The objective of investments portfolio is to balance risk with
adequate return.

OUTLOOK

A significant portion of the Company's income arises from investment and share trading
operation, which are largely dependent on the condition of the stock market. The stock market
activity depends largely upon the economic growth momentum and a combination of other
factors like inflation, domestic savings, surging portfolio investments into India etc. The
unusual developments in the global economy may pose uncertainties and challenges for the
emerging market economies like India. However, the Company has investment policy wherein
it invests in those securities which have easy liquidity, better yield and potential for price
appreciation in medium to long run.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has implemented a system of internal controls and risk management for
achieving operational efficiency, optimal utilization of resources, credible financial reporting
and compliance with local laws.
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The system is aimed at covering all areas of operations. All transactions entered into by the
Company are duly authorized and recorded correctly. The internal financial controls within the
Company are commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. It has
implemented suitable controls to ensure that financial transactions are reported with accuracy
and that there is strict compliance with applicable laws and regulations. These controls are
regularly reviewed internally for effectiveness. The Company has robust policies and
procedures which, inter alia, ensure integrity in conducting its business, the safeguarding of its
assets, timely preparation of reliable financial information, accuracy and completeness in
maintaining accounting records and the prevention and detection offrauds and errors.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, the
details of significant changes (Le. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately
previous financial year) in key financial ratios are as follows:-

Particulars Financial Year
2022 2021

GNPA{%) NIL NIL

NNPA(%) NIL NIL

Return on Assets (%) 0.36 0.06

Return on Equity (%) 0.37 0.06

Net Interest Margin (%) 100 100

Current Ratio 65 543

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00

Net Profit Margin (%) 64.68 74.70

EPS 32.34 6.57

Price Earnings Ratio 69 298

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements under "Management Discussion & Analysis· describing the Company's
objectives, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward looking statements within
the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Although the expectations are
based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results could materially differ from those
expressed or implied, since the Company's operations are influenced by many external factors
beyond the control of the Company. Investors are cautioned that the Company assumes no
responsibility to publicly amend, modify, revise or update any forward looking statement or
opinion, on the basis of any subsequent developments, events or information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,

The Members of

N. B. I. Industrial Finance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of N. B. I. Industrial Finance
Company Limited (lithe Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31"March
2022,theStatement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(''the Acf') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 "March
2022, the profit and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and its cash
flows forthe year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs") specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (''the ICAI") together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Sr. The Key audit matter Auditor's Response
No.

Valuation and Existence of Investments- We obtained independent confirmation of
the number of units held and net asset

We have focused on the valuation and existence value per unit for each of the mutual fund
of the investments in Equity, Preference Shares units and market value for shares as at the
and Mutual Funds because these represent a year-end date, confirmation of shares
principal element on the net assets in the and its market value.
Financial Statements. We have also obtained the most recent set

of audited financial statements for
Refer Note 6 to the Financial Statements. unquoted investments.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is the
Director's report but does not include financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matter stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with IndAS prescribed under section 133
of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
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and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to the financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by
management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (I) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
.work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare Circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The figures for the year ended 31"' March 2021 are based on the annual financial
statements that were audited by the erstwhile auditors whose report dated 18th June, 2021,
expressed an unmodified opinion. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. Our
appointment as Statutory Auditors was approved by the shareholder on zr January, 2022.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessaryforthe purposes of my audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Actread with Rules
made thereunder.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31"
March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31" March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report given in 'Annexure B'. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting;

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. In our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us; the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of my information and according to the
explanations given to us:
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i. The Company has no pending litigations which would impact its financial position
in its standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year
ended 31" March, 2022.

iv. As perthe management representation provided, we report,

• no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries"), with the
understanding that the intermediaries shall whether directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

• no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties") with the understanding that such
company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
(ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate beneficiaries.

• Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations given by
management under the above sub-clauses contain any material mis-statement.

• As perthe records of the Company no dividend has been declared or paid during
the year

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

Nilima Joshi
Partner
Membership No. 52122
UDIN :22052122AISFZB9326

Place: Kolkata
Date :07105/2022
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Annexure-'A' to the Independent Auditor's Report for the year
ended 31"' March 2022

[Referred to in para 1 of the heading 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' of
our report]

(i) (a)(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & Equipment.

(ii) (a)

(iii)

(8) The company has no intangible assets, hence para 3(i)(a)(8)a of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has a regular programme
of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all Property,
Plant and Equipment are verified every year. In accordance with this programme,
all the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, para 3(i)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets
or both during the year.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the 8enami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

The Company has no inventory hence para 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees at any point of
time of the year in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on para 3(ii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that since the company is in the
business of making investments including granting loans in the normal course of its
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business and further, as it has not provided any guarantee or security to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties, the provisions of
paragraph 3{iii)(a) to (f) or the Order are not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company being a Non-banking Finance
company, provisions of section185 and 186 of the Act is not applicable. Thus
paragraph 3{iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public during the year to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of Sections73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder apply. Thus paragraph 3{v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us the Central Govemment
has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section
148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Thus paragraph
3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, in respect of amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, during
the year with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed statutory dues
payable in respect of above statues outstanding as at 31 st March 2022 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no dues of income tax, Goods
& service tax, cess etc. which have not been deposited as at 31st March, 2022 on
account of any dispute

(viii) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on para 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any loan or other
borrowing, hence there is no requirement to report under clause (ix)(a) of the Order.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not been declared will full defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) The company has not raised any funds by way of term loan, hence para 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) As no funds have been raised during the year, hence no reporting is required under
para 3(ix)( d) of the Order.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on paragraph 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(x) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not raised any money during the
year by way of further public offer (including debt instruments). Hence reporting
under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
during the year. Hence reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) Based on the examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanation given to us, considering the principles of
materiality outlined in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of
audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Govemment, during the year and up to the date of this report

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no whistle
blower complaints received by the Company during the year while determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, transactions with the related parties are in
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compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion the Company has an adequate intemal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business and report of the Intemal Auditors have
been considered by us.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company has obtained registration under Section 45-IAofthe Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Rnance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
(COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence reporting under paragraph
3(xvi)(c) ofthe Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, none of the group
companies are CIC and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year, the
outgoing auditor has given their resignation pursuant to guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India for appointment of Statutory central auditors (SeA's)
IStatutory auditors (SA's) of commercial bank (excluding RRB's), UCB and NBFC's
(including HFC) dated zr of April, 2021 and no objections, issues or concerns
were raised by the outgoing auditor.

(xix) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting
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its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We further state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, with
respect to obligations under Corporate social responsibility (CSR), the company is
not required to spend towards CSR based on criteria as specified under section
134(5) of the act during the year and there are no such ongoing projects and
unspent amount related to it, hence no reporting is required to be reported under
the clause (xx)(a) and (xx)(b) ofthe order.

(xxi) The preparation of consolidated financial statements is not applicable to the
Company. Hence reporting under paragraph (xxi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

Nilima Joshi
Partner
Membership No. 52122
UDIN : 22052122AISFZB9326

Place: Kolkata
Date : 07105/2022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")
[Referred to in para 2(f) of the heading 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements'
of our report]

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of N. B. I. Industrial
Finance Co, Limited ('the Company') as of 31" March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year then ended.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note").

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance
Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

(67)



87th Annual Report 2021-22
N.B.! Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

CIN : L65923WB1936PLC065596
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
jUdgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

Nilima Joshi
Partner
Membership No. 52122
UDIN :22052122AISFZB9326

Place: Kolkata
Date :07/05/2022
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March,2021

A ASSETS
1 Financial Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 610.20 3,688.55

(b) Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5 1.63 271.66
(c) Investments 6 219,533.43 262,373.79

(d) Other Financial Assets 7 17.55 55.41
TOTAL 220,162.81 266,389.41

2 Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 40.59 60.08
(b) Property, Plant & Equipment 9 0.47 0.92

(c) Other-Non Financial Assets 10 0.74 4.76
TOTAL 41.80 65.76
TOTAL - ASSETS 2201204.61 266,455.17

B LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

a) Payables
Trade Payables 11

i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 1.04

b) Other Financial Liabilities 12 5.70 6.82
2 Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) Provisions 13 53.53 55.32
(b) Defered Tax Liability (Net) 14 6,286.93 12,271.68
(c) Other Non-Financial liabilities 15 4.16 1.97

TOTAL 6,351.36 12,335.79
Equity

(a) Share Capital 16 122.84 122.84
(b) Other Equity 17 213,730.41 253,996.54

Total 213,853.25 254,119.38
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 220,204.61 266,455.17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached.
For Chaturvedi & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302137E

B. L. Gaggar T. K. Bhattacharya

Nlllma Joshi
Director Director

Partner
DIN -00404123 DIN-00711665

Membership No. 052122
Place: Kolkata S. P. Kumar Sudha Jain
Date: 7th May 2022 Manager & CFO Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March,2021

Revenue from Operations
(a) Interest Income 18 42.37 41.74
(b) Dividend Income 19 1,089.73 147.19
(c) Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 20 94.02 27.05
Total Revenue from operations 1,226.12 215.99

II Other Income 21 2.12 0.01
III Total Income (I+II) 1,228.24 216.00

Expenses
(a) Employee Benefit expenses 22 82.40 73.60
(b) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 9 0.44 0.46
(c) Other Expenses 23 56.59 43.95

IV Total Expenses 139.43 118.01
V Profit/{Ioss) before Tax (III-IV) 11°88.81 97.99
VI Tax Expense 24

(a) Current Tax 265.24
(b) Deferred Tax 29.09 (63.36)

294.33 (63.36)
VII Profit/{Loss) for the Year 794.48 161.35
VIII Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to ProfiV(Loss)
(a) Equity Instruments through OCI 25 (46,997.66) 104,499.62
(b) Tax impacts on above 6,004.48 (12,339.76)

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to ProfiV(Loss)
(a) Debt Instruments through OCI 25 4.83 115.12
(b) Tax impacts on above 9.36 (8.10)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (I + Ii) (40,978.99) 92,266.88
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (V+VI) (40,184.51) 92,428.23
X Earnings per equity share (FV Rs. 5/- each)

Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 26 32.34 6.57

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached.
For Chaturvedi & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302137E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B. L. Gaggar
Director

DIN -00404123

T. K. Bhattacharya
Director

DIN-00711665NilimaJoshl
Partner
Membership No. 052122
Place; Kolkata
Date; 7th May 2022

S. P. Kumar
Manager & CFO

Sudha Jain
Company Secretary
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March,2022 March,2021

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax 1,088.81 97.99
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 0.44 0.46
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes (94.02) (27.05)
Liabilities no longer required written back (1.95)
Interest income on investment-FVTOCI {1.59}

{97.12} (26.59)
Operating ProfiU(Loss) before working Capital Changes 991.69 71.40
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 37.86 (21.36)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Financial Assets 4.02 (3.23)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable 1.04
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 0.83 (2.41)
Increase /( Decrease) in Provision (1.79) 6.55
Increase /( Decrease) in unpaid claimed dividend account 0.03
Increase /( Decrease) in Other Non-Financial Liabilities 2.19 1.29

44.18 (19.17)
Cash Generated from Operations 1,035.87 52.23
Net Income Tax (Paid)!Refund (245.75) (37.93)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 790.12 14.31

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities

661.49
(0.83)

539.07
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
Sale of Mutual Funds
Purchase of Mutual Funds
Purchase of Shares
Sale of Shares
Redemption of preference share
Realisation of fixed deposit
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

NET CASH FROM !(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year

(5,906.00)
863.68
242.36
270.00

(3,868.47)

(1,120.07)
3,964.97

242.36

3,625.50

(3,078.35)
3,688.55

610.20

3,639.81
48.74

3,688.55

Note:
The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in INO AS 7·'Statement of Cash Flows'.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached.
For Chaturvedi & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302137E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B. L. Gaggar
Director

DIN -00404123

T. K. Bhattacharya
Director

DIN-00711665Nilima Joshi
Partner
Membership No. 052122
Place : Kolkata
Date: 7th May 2022

S. P. Kumar Sudha Jain
Manager & CFO Company Secretary
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Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity Share Capital
For the FY 2021-22

Changes in Restated
Changes in

Equity Share balance at the
Balance as at 1st Capital due beginning of equity share Balance as at

April,2021 to prior period the current capital 31st March,2022
reporting during the

errors current yearperiod

122.84 - - - 122.84

For the FY 2020-21

Changes in Restated
Equity Share balance at the Changes in

Balance as at 1st Capital due beginning of equity share Balance as at
April,2020 to prior period the current capital 31st March,2021

errors reporting during the
period current year

122.84 - - 122.84

b. Other Equity (All amounts in Rs lacs unless otherwise stated)
Reserve & Surplus

Debt Equity
Capital Securities Statutory General Retained Instruments Instruments Total. Reserve Premium Reserve Reserve Earnings ThroughOCI Through OCI

Balanc. al at 1st April, 2020 0.55 16.51 2,396.99 4,913.06 5,356.11 (45.62, 148,930.70 161,568.30

Profilf(Loss) for the Year 161.35 161.35
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 107.03 92,159.86 92,266.89
Transfer to Reserve Fund 32.27 (32.27'

Balanc. a. on 31.1 March, 2021 0.55 16.51 2,429.26 4,913.06 5,485.19 61.41 241,090.56 253,996.54

ProHIf(Loss, for the Year 794.48 794.48
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 14.19 (40.993.18' (40,978.98)
Reclassilicalion of gain on sale FVTOCI debllnstrumenls (81.63) (81.63)
Transfer from Equity Instrument through OCI to retained
earnings: on account of sale of share - 156.80 (156.80)
Transfer to Reserve Fund 158.90 (158.90)

Balance as on 31.1 March, 2022 0.55 16.51 2,588.16 4,913.06 6,2n.58 (6.03' 199,940.59 213,730.41

For and on behalf of the Board of DirectorsIn terms of our report attached.
For Chaturvedi & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302137E

B. L. Gaggar
Director

DIN -00404123

T. K. Bhattacharya
Director

DIN-00711665

Nlllma Joshi
Partner
Membership No. 052122
Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May 2022

S. P. Kumar
Manager & CFO

Sudha Jain
Company Secretary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2022

1. Corporate Information

N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited ("the Company") is a public company limited by
shares, incorporated on 21 st December, 1936 and domiciled in India. Its shares are listed
on the National Stock Exchange (NSE). The Company is carrying on business as a "Non-
Banking Financial Company" (NBFC). The Company is engaged mainly in investment in
shares in securities & financial activity. The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of
India as NBFC. The Company's registered office is 21 , Strand Road Kolkata - 700001.

The financial statements of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7th May, 2022.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (''the Act").

b. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention and on an
accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value/ amortised cost as explained in the accounting policies below.

c. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also its functional
currency and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in lacs and
rounded off to the nearest two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Financiallnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets -

» Recognition And Initial Measurement

All financial assets are recoqnlsed initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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~ Classification and Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost;
Debt Instruments at FairValue Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI);
Debt Instruments at FairValue Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and
Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in
the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

o Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost: Adebt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if
both the following conditions are met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

o Debt Instruments at FVOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVOCI if both of the
following conditions are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets; and
The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction
costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. However, the interest
income, losses & reversals, and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest calculated using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest)
method is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as investment income.

o Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as amortized cost or as
FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt
instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as FVTPL. Debt
instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Equity Instruments measured at FVOCI: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS - 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in Other Comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. In case the Company decides to classify an
equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument are recognized in
the Other Comprehensive Income. There is no reclassification of the amounts from Other
Comprehensive Income to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. Dividends on
investments are credited to profit or loss.

o Equity Investments: Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

~ Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

~ Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS -109 requires expected credit losses to
be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected
losses for all contract assets and/ or all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount
equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

(ii) Financial Liabilities
» Recognition And Initial Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

~ Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for-trading, or it is a
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derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) amortisation process. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in profit or loss.

» Derecognition
Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

» Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance
Sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand, term deposits with
original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in values.

3.3 Property. plant and equipment (PPE)
PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributablecost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalised only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of
item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off
as and when incurred.
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Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE, outstanding at each reporting date are
shown under other non-financial assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not
ready for its intended use at each reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-
progress.
Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset only if it increases the future benefits of the existing
asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be
measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when
incurred.
Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit
and loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

3.4 Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on written down value
method (WDV) to write down their residual values over their estimated useful life
specified in Schedule IIof the Companies Act, 2013.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

3.5 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of
impairment, based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then an
impairment review is undertaken and the recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use.

3.6. Employee Benefits Expenses
3.6.1. Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year
when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive
and compensated absences, which are expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period inwhich the employee renders the related service.

3.6.2. Defined contribution schemes
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays specified monthly contributions to Provident Fund. The Company's
contribution is recognized as an expense inthe Statement of Profit and Loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

3.7. Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.
3.7.1 CurrentTax
The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

3.7.2 Deferredtax
Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial
statements except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither the accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of
transaction.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is
reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no
longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period. Section 115BAA provides a domestic company with an
irrevocable option to pay tax at a lower rate of 22% (effective rate of 25.168%). The
lower rate shall be applicable subject to certain conditions, including that the total
income should be computed without claiming specific deduction or exemptions. MAT
would be inapplicable to companies opting to apply the lower tax rate.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
when the same relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or
directly in Equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are
also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity respectively .
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3.8 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and assets
Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that
is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence inthe financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

3.9 Recognition of interest income
Interest income for all financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) is recognised using the contractual interest rate.

3.10 Recognition of Dividend Income
Dividend income (including from Investments measured at FVTOCI) is recognised
when the Company's right to receive the payment is established. This is established
when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

3.11Leases
i) Arrangements where the Company is the lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-use
Asset and a corresponding Lease Liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (,short-term leases') and
low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises
the rent as an operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease
before the end of the lease term. Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liabilities includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
The Right-of-use Assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liabilities l.e. present value of future lease payments adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The lease payments are
discounted using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured
with a corresponding adjustment to the related Right-of-use asset if the Company
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.
Right-of-use Assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis overthe shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

ii) Arrangements where the Company is the lessor
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
The lease rentals under such agreements are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss as per the terms of the lease.

3.12 Segment reporting
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of investment in Companies. As
such the Company's financial statements are largely reflective of the investment
business and there is no separate reportable segment.
Pursuant to IndAS 108 - Operating Segments, no segment disclosure has been made
in these financial statements, as the Company has only one geographical segment
and no other separate reportable business segment.

3.13 Earnings per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding forthe effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.14 Cash-flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular
revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.
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3.15 USE OF ESTIMATES. JUDGEMENTS AND ADJUSTMENT
'The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end.
Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets
The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) is based on a number
of factors including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other
economic factors (such as known technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE at the end of each reporting date and any
changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment for possible impairment
if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of
the assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for
impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's
business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into consideration.

(ii) Fair Value Measurements and Valuation Processes
Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Company engages third party valuers, where required, to perform the
valuation. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
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(III) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carried Forward Tax Losses and
Unused Tax Credit
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment
of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred
tax assets can be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in assessing
the impact of any legal or economic limits.
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March,2021

2.01 2.00

0.69 28.76
607.50 3,657.79
610.20 3,688.55

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March,2021

270.00
1.63 1.66
1.63 271.66

Note: 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand
Balances with Banks
a) in current accounts
b) in flexi fixed deposit

Note: 5 Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed Deposits with Bank (maturing after period of three months)
Unpaid (Unclaimed) Dividend Account

Note: 6 Investments

As at 31st
March, 2022

As at 31st
March,2021

Investment measured at FVTPL
i) Mutual funds(unquoted)

Investment measured at FVOCI
42.54 691.64

l) Preference Shares
ii) Equity Shares

Total
Investment outside India
Investment in India

19.31 255.24
219,471.58 261,426.91
219,533.43 262,373.79

219,533.43 262,373.79

As at 31st As at 31st
March,2022 March,2021

40.00 670.00
12,455.49 7,118.25

738.94 738.84
160.74

25.00 25.00

6.1 Book value of the above investments are as follows:
i) Debt/Equity Mutual Funds
ii) Quoted Equity Instruments
iii) Unquoted Equity Instruments
iv) Quoted Preference Instruments
v) Unquoted Preference Instruments

6.2Of thetotal dividendrecognisedduringtheyear frominvestmentin equitysharedeSignatedat FVOCIRS.3.65Lacs
(PreviousyearRS.14.41Lacs) is relatingto investmentderecognisedduringthe periodand Rs.1,072.57lacs
(Previousyear Rs. 104.66lacs)pertainsto investmentheldat theendof reportingperiod.

6.3Theotherdisclosureregardingfair valueand riskarisingfromfinancialinstrumentsare explainedin NoteNo.31& 32.
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

6.4 Details of investments are as follows :-
Mutual funds-

Particulars Face As at 31 st March,2022 As at 31st March,2021
Value Units Amount Units Amount

Unquoted-FVTPL

HDFC OVERNIGHT FUND-Regular Plan 1,000.00 1,356.40 42.54 1,356 41.24

HDFC Arbitrage Fund 10.00 . - 2,712,600 650.40

SubTotal 42.54 691.64

Equity Instrument

(Others,Fully Paid Up,FVOCI)

Quoted

3 M india Ltd. 10.00 1,094.00 215.49 1,094 333.08

Bosch ltd. 10.00 9,599.00 1,385.95 9,599 1,352.35

Eicher motors Ltd. 1.00 - - 4 0.10

Foseco ltd 10.00 8,887.00 123.00 8,887 101.59

Gillette ltd 10.00 38,350,00 1,859.84 - -
GE Power India Ltd 10.00 266,455.00 405.14 - -
HDFC Bank Ltd. 2.00 . . 56,000 836.44

Hindustan Unilever ltd. 1.00 115,461.00 2,365.39 115,461 2,807.53

Huhtamaki PPL Ltd. 2.00 122,050.00 184.17 122,050 341.72

ICICI Bank Ltd 2.00 110,500.00 806.98 - -
ITC Limited 1.00 465,000.00 1,165.52 - -
JK Pharmachem Ltd. 10.00 2,500.00 0.04 2,500 0.25

Kansai Nerolac Paints Ltd. 1.00 9,700.00 45.37 9,700 58.30

Nestle Ltd. 10.00 2,030.00 352.83 2,030 348.45

Orient Cement Ltd. 1.00 260,000.00 369.98 260,000 254.28

Procter & Gamble Hygeine & Health CareLtd. 10.00 19,970.00 2,878.80 19,970 2,532.09

Pfizer Ltd 10.00 17,ln.00 746.88 - -
Regency Industries Ltd. 10.00 1,000.00 0.01 1,000 0.01

Sanathana Dharma Gurugulam Ltd. 10.00 1,000.00 0.01 1,000 0.01

Shree Cement Ltd. 10.00 849,450.00 204,144.92 849,450 250,293.84

United Spirits Ltd. 2.00 45,500.00 404.20 45,500 253.14

Western India Commercial Co. Ltd. 100.00 2,105.00 316.25 2,105 1.16

Whirlpool India Ltd. 10.00 30,000.00 471.86 30,000 667.98

Sub Total(a) 218,242.63 260,182.32
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in As. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

6.4 Details of investments are as follows ;-

Particulars Face As at 31 st March,2022 As at 31st March,2021
Value Units Amount Units Amount

Unquoted
Alfa Buildhome Pvt. Ltd. 10.00 9,000 106.92 9,000 110.67
Aqua infra Projects Ltd. 10.00 740,000 590.45 740,000 621.85
Karmayog Properties Pvt. Ltd. 10.00 258,000 276.87 258,000 280.83
Ramgopal Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 10.00 60,625 21.19 60,625 21.29
Shree Cement Marketing Ltd. 10.00 9,000 1.74 9,000 1.58
Shree Cement East Bengal Foundation 10.00 1,000 0.01 1,000 0.10
Shreecap Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 10.00 7,000 0.84 7,000 0.80
Tanushree LogistiCS Pvt. Ltd. 10.00 99,000 230.92 99,000 207.46
Sub Total(b) 1,228.94 1,244.59
Sub Total(a+b) 219,471.57 261,426.91

Particulars Face As at 31 st March,2022 As at 31st March,2021
Value Units Amount Units Amount

Preference Shares
Others,Fully Paid Up,FVOCI
Quoted
2.95% ZeeEntertainment Enterprises Ltd - NCPS -/(2) - - 12,118,24C 230.25
Unquoted
CEM Logistics Pvt Ltd.-9 % NCNCRPS 100.00 25,000 19.30 25,000 25.00
SubTotal 19.30 255.25

As at 31st As at 31st
March,2022 March,2021

Note: 7 Other Financial Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits 0.31 0.31
Interest accrued on Bank Deposits 2.19 24.10
Dividend Receivable on Investments 13.45
Advance to Staff 15.05 17.55

17.55 55.41

Note: 8 Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Tax

Less: Provision for Tax
285.59

(245.00)

40.59

74.68

(14.60)

60.08
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Office
Equipments

TOTALParticulars Furniture &
Fixtures

Note: 9 Property, Plant & Equipment

As at 1st April, 2020
Additions
Deletions
As at 31st March, 2021
As at 1st April, 2021
Additions -
Deletions
As at 31st March, 2022
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April, 2020
For the year
As at 31st March, 2021
As at 1st April, 2021
For the year
As at 31st March, 2022
Net Book Value
As at 31st March, 2022
As at 31st March, 2021

0.63 0.68 1.31
0.83 0.83

0.63 1.51 2.14
0.63 1.51 2.14

0.63 1.51 2.14

0.28 0.47 0.76
0.09 0.38 0.46
0.37 0.85 1.22
0.37 0.85 1.22
0.06 0.39 0.45
0.43 1.24 1.67

0.20 0.27 0.47
0.26 0.66 0.92

As at 31st As at 31st
March,2022 March,2021

0.61 1.25
0.03 0.03

3.48
0.10
0.74 4.76

As at 31st As at 31st
March,2022 March,2021

Note: 10 Other-Non Financial Assets

Advance against Expense
Advance Depository Charges
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Balances I deposits with government authorities

Note: 11 Trade Payables

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.04

1.04
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 11 (a) Ageing schedule for Trade Payables as at 31st March, 2022-due for payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years
1 year

More than 3 years Total

(I) MSME
(ii) Others 1.04
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others

1.04

Note: 11 (b) Ageing schedule for Trade Payables as at 31st March, 2021-due for payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years
1 year

More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others

Note: 11 (c) Disclosure with regard to dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

(I) The Ministry of micro, small and medium enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26
August 2008 which recommends that the micro and small enterprises should mention in their
correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of
the Memorandum in accordance with the 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
(,the Act'). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises has been
made in the financial statements based on the information received and available with the Company.
(ii) Based on the information I documents available with the company, no interest provisions I payments
has to be made by the Company to micro enterprises and small enterprises creditors and thus, no related
disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 are made in these accounts.
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